
How I Found  
My World War II Hero  

in CHINA 
By Mary Taylor Previte 

 
On a quiet Sunday afternoon, March 29, 
2015, I opened an e-mail that took my 
breath away.  The subject line said: “ I am 
the grandson of Eddie Wang (Cheng-
Han Wang)” 
 
I read it again. “ I am the grandson of 

Eddie Wang 
(Cheng-Han 
Wang)” 
 
Eddie Wang was 
the Chinese inter-
preter on the 
American rescue 
mission that para-
chuted from a B-24 
to liberate 1,500 Al-
lied prisoners from 
the Weihsien con-
centration camp in 
China.  August 17, 

1945.  
I was twelve years old when Eddie Wang 
and the Americans came.  
 
For eighteen years I’ve been looking for 
Eddie Wang. I’ve always hit dead ends. I 
remember seeing a byline in the New York 
Times:  Edward Wong, reporting from Asia.   
No, Edward Wong wrote back to me.  He 
knew nothing about Weihsien.  
 
Finding someone named Wang in China 
is as difficult as finding someone named 
Smith in the United States.   Finding one 
very special Wang from almost a billion 
and a half people?   Not so easy.   
 
In 1997, I searched successfully and found 
all of the six Americans who liberated 

Weihsien. But seven rescuers liberated the 
camp.   Where was the Chinese interpreter, 
Wang Cheng-Han?  We called him 
“Eddie.”  His high school English teacher 
had given him that name.  
 
Now here was his e-mail note. 
 
“My name is Qian Wang (Daniel Wang),” 
the letter said.  “I am the grandson of Ed-
ward Wang, who was the Chinese inter-
preter of the rescue team going to the 
Japanese concentrate camp in Weihsien, 
China, on August 17, 1945. I am currently 
living with my wife in Lexington, SC with a 
temporary VISA.” 
 
Bless my soul!   Answers in South Caro-
lina! 
 
“My grandfather is still alive, 90 years old 
now, living in China,” Daniel continued.    
“He is very healthy!” 
 
The note said that his grandfather had once 
told him about his experience in Weihsien. 
But Daniel had almost forgotten a long-ago 
promise -- that he would try to find for his 
grandfather other members of the rescue 
team.  
 
Daniel is a photographer.  “I was reading a 
story about an American military photogra-
pher who served in Flying Tigers during 
WWII.  And I remembered my promise. My 
grandfather helped.  He gave me a name, 
Stanley Staiger.    I googled it, and I found 
this page: http://www.weihsien-paintings.org/topica/
archives/2009-1to12.htm.  
I confirmed with my grandfather about the 
time, place, and all the seven peoples' 
names. 
 
“I can't describe how excited I am now!”  
Daniel wrote.   “My hands are trembling! I 
enclosed two of my grandfather's picture 
taken on his 90-year-old birthday a few 
weeks ago. I don't know if you can receive 
this email, or still remember how he looked 
like. Please let me know if you are still try-

Eddie WANG, when he graduated ... 
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ing to find him.  I look forward to hearing 
from you!” 
 
Daniel Wang had sent photographs:  

 
I answered immediately and started buzz-
ing family e-mail lines.  The Japanese had 
interned five of us Taylors in Weihsien.  
 
My daughter Alice jumped into my joy!  
“Wonderful!  The last hero!” 
 
What followed were weeks of phone calls 
and e-mails to Daniel Wang.  Could this 
really be “our” Eddie Wang?   How could I 
prove it?  
 
With my successful search for the Ameri-
cans on the team, I was helped because 
several of them had become close friends.  

They had kept in touch with each other.  
When I found each one, I called them, vis-
ited them, nudged their local newspapers to 
write about them. 
 
With Eddie Wang, my search had to be dif-
ferent.  He lives in China.  He had not kept 
connected with others on the team. I 
drafted a long list of questions. I consulted 
my Chinese friends about proper etiquette. 
Were sixteen questions too many?  Too 
stressful?   After all, Mr. Wang is 90 years 
old. These Chinese friends added a very 
important fact: The name Wang is com-
mon.  Cheng-Han is not . 
 
My brother John wanted to know: “How will 
you know if he gets the answers right?”  
John, now a surgeon, had been interned in 
Weihsien, too.  
 
“Because I already know the answers, “ I 
told him.  “I’ll know if he gets them right.” 
 
Daniel Wang came back with four pages of 
answers that fascinated and reassured me.   
Where did the team stay while they were in 
Weihsien?  How would Mr. Wang describe 
Major Staiger?  How close to the camp did 
the parachutes land?  
 
In Mr. Wang’s answers, I was reading de-
tails I had heard from other members of the 
liberation team. Our family e-mails buzzed. 
“This Eddie Wang is for real.”   
 
“I’ve decided to believe he’s real unless told 
otherwise,“ my daughter Alice wrote.  “I 
think it’s wonderful.” Alice is a lawyer.  
She’s trained to ask questions.                          
 
Complications piled up. How would I talk to 
Mr. Wang?  Grandson, Daniel, was full of 
suggestions like “Can you use Skype?”  
Bless my soul! I’m technologically-illiterate. 
How do you Skype?  
 
My own questions were more down to 
earth: Can Mr. Wang still speak English? 
Daniel wasn’t sure.  How would we talk to-

Pictures taken at Wang Cheng-Han’s 90th birthday 



gether?  My own Chinese is now disap-
pointingly limited. 
 
Having joined in every detail of this adven-
ture, our dearest Chinese  friends jumped 
in.  I could drive to their home a half hour 
away, they offered, and use their speaker-
phone.  If Mr. Wang needed an interpreter, 
they would sit beside me to help.  Hui-Zhen 
even suggested the best time for the call:  9 
a.m. when daylight lights the highway here 
for me in New Jersey and when rush hour 
traffic wouldn’t be dangerous for my drive.  
That would be 9 p.m. in China, before Mr. 
Wang went to bed.   
 
We prepared carefully. In every call to 
Daniel, I asked him: “Will this excitement 
make your grandfather sick, will it give him 
trouble in any way?”  For each step, Daniel 
got approval from his grandfather.  
 
I had one main request; Tell me your 
story. 
 
Hui-zhen phoned Mr. Wang at exactly 9 
a.m., Sunday, May 3.  We were seated side 
by side at their dining room table, talking 
into the speakerphone – all the way across 
the world.  Mr. Wang, talking from Guizhou 
Province in China, sounded like he was sit-
ting with us, chatting with friends. He 
amazed me. Now 90 years old, in good 
health, with an amazingly sharp memory, 
he still has an amazingly good mastery of 
English.  
 

His is an amazing story.   I vowed I 
would not cry.   But I get goose bumps as I 
think about this conversation. 
 
How do you thank a hero who risked his 
life for you? 
 
“Mr. Wang, I thank God that he has given 
me the gift of living long enough to talk with 
you and to thank you for helping to liberate 
all of us in Weihsien from the Japanese.” 
 
I asked Mr. Wang to tell his story.   Bless 

my soul!  We chatted for more than an 
hour.  

Here are some tiny details that fascinated 
and delighted me: A teenager, Betty Lam-
bert, and another teenaged girl taught him 
to dance in Weihsien.  A Greek girl gave 
him a piece of silk parachute embroidered 
with the rescue scene and autographed by 
the seven liberators.  He knew nothing 
about religion, so someone had to stop him 
when he was smoking in the church.  The 
team ate their meals at first from the three 
camp kitchens but later from food dropped 
by American bombers. The team lived in 
and ate their meals in the building that had 
been Japanese Headquarters. Once, he 
made a funny translating mistake when the 
team ate in an eating place in the town of 
Weihsien. “In this Chinese restaurant where 
I was translating for the team, I heard 
‘chicken legs’ as ‘chicken eggs.’”	  Some-
times he got diarrhea and had to be treated 
by team medic, Raymond Hanchulak.  

When I asked Mr. Wang  (I COULD'NT call 
him "Eddie.")  what he loved most about his 
experiences there, he said,  "Everything 
was so new to me.  I loved it all,"  -- that he 
was only 20 years old, so many, many chil-
dren,  and everyone talking English.  

He loved to play sports with the children. 

There was nothing he didn't like, he told 
me. 
 

BUT the parachute drop was a night-
mare!  He had been trained to do parachut-
ing in a Chinese camp, a simulation on the 
ground only, never  
 
a real jump from an airplane during his 
training.  He said he once questioned his 
training instructor that his life could be en-
dangered doing real parachuting if he was 
trained only by simulation. The instructor 
told him, "You'll be fine.  You are not a big 
guy," So he always worried about a real 
jump.  Fortunately, the parachutes they 



used on that mission would be automati-
cally deployed.  It saved his life.  When he 
jumped from the B-24, the sudden strong 
flow of air made him dizzy, almost uncon-
scious. But the parachute deployed in 
about 15 seconds, and the powerful pulling 
force awakened him.  This was his first 
jump from a plane.  He landed safely. 
 
Wang Cheng-Han began to learn English in 
Chengdu’s Shude High School, one of the 
tops in China.  He was a sophomore stu-
dent in Sichuan University when he joined 
the military service in December 1944 and 
trained in Luzhou.   But he didn’t like the 
training there because they were not 
trained for how to fight, only non-combat 
drilling.  Non-combat drilling?  There was a 
war out there!   He wanted to fight the 
Japanese army.  
 
Later, he was recruited into the telecommu-
nication group in Chongqing  where he 
learned Morse code. After that, he was re-
cruited in the interpreter training class and 
completed a 25-day translation training be-
fore he was assigned, in May 1945, to the 
interpreter pool in Kunming.  The American 
Office of Strategic Services (OSS ) re-
cruited interpreters from that pool.  There, 
he was employed and assigned to Special 
Intelligence (SI) group and to Major Stanley 
Staiger’s team.  Major Staiger headed the 
Weihsien "Duck Mission" rescue team.  

The Weihsien rescue mission was organ-
ized in Kunming, the headquarters of 
OSS.     In  Xi-An, on the early morning of 
August 17, 1945, Eddie Wang was in-
formed that the team was about to carry on 
a rescue mission at Weihsien, Shandong 
province.  Only then, was he informed of 
the details about flying to Weihsien. 

Previously, Mr. Wang had trained in using 
small arms, light machine gun, Bazooka (a 
small rocket launcher) and TNT at Kaiyuan 
where he had learned parachuting.     
 
So at the age of  20,  Eddie Wang  para-

chuted from a B-24 over Weihsien.  He re-
members carrying  a pistol, a carbine, and 
a dagger. 

Team members landed in a field of gao-
liang not far from the camp.   
He says he was closest in friendship 

with Peter Orlich, the radio operator on 
the team.  Peter Orlich was 21 years old.   

Rescue team members took over and 
stayed in what had been the small Japa-
nese headquarters building, not far from the 
entrance to the camp.  There was a toilet 
downstairs that allowed only two people to 
use it at the same time. 
 
Mr. Wang says his job in Weihsien was to 
translate for the team anything to do with 
China.  When twenty Americans of the Spe-
cial Intelligence group later arrived in 
Weihsien, they brought their own Chinese 

An early model of a B-24 

The plane that flew over WeiHsien on August 17, 1945 



interpreter.  
 
In the turmoil that swept China after the 
war, Mr. Wang says he lost most of his 
treasures from that rescue mission in 
Weihsien.  Here’s a picture of the duffel bag 
he used in Weihsien.  

 
After the war, Wang Cheng-Han graduated 
from Sichuan University.  He became an 
engineer.  Once on a business trip, he vis-
ited Weihsien.  He retired in 1990. # 

 
# 

这是一段尘封了70年的记忆。这段记忆，因远隔重洋美国老太

的不懈找寻，这才得以启封。 

今年5月3日，一个越洋电话打进了住在贵阳的王成汉老人的家

中。电话的那端，是美国新泽西州82岁的老太太Mary Tay-lor 

Previte。16个问题的提问，证实了王成汉就是 Eddie Wang，一

个参与了代号为“鸭子行动”的山东潍县（现在的潍坊）集中营

解救行动的中国翻译，美军7人解救小组的成员之一。至此，

Mary18年的寻找终于划上了圆满的句号。 
 

呼吸，在一瞬间停顿 

今年的3月29日是一个宁静的星期日。午后的阳光，从窗外照

射进了美国南新泽西州哈登菲尔德Mary Taylor Previte的家中。

82岁的Mary坐在电脑前，习惯性地打开电脑，准备阅读自己的

电子邮件。 

“I am the grandson of Eddie Wang (Cheng-Han Wang)”（我是王

成汉的孙子）。一个电子邮件的标题，让Mary瞬间的呼吸停顿

了下来。摇了摇头，Mary让自己慢慢恢复了平静，之后，她又

把标题重复地读了一遍。这才小心翼翼地打开了邮件。 

邮件是一个名叫王谦的中国男子发来的。 

“我叫王谦（Daniel Wang），是Eddie Wang的孙子。他曾是解

救小组中的中国翻译，于1945年8月17日到过中国潍县集中

营。现我和妻子持临时签证居住在南卡罗来纳州的Lexington镇

上”。 

“天哪！ 是来自南卡罗来纳的消息。”Mary不由得发出了感

叹！ 

王谦接着写道，“我的祖父仍然健在，现年90岁，居住在中

国，他十分健康”。王谦在信中还说到，他的祖父曾同他讲过

在潍县时的情况，但是，王谦差不多忘记了很早以前他曾承诺

会替祖父找寻解救小组中的其他成员。 

王谦是一位摄影师。他写道，“我正在看一个故事，是关于美

国军事摄影师在二战中的飞虎队服役的，于是我想起了我的承

诺。我的祖父帮助了我，他告诉我一个名字：Stanley Staiger。

通过谷歌搜索，找到了一个网页。我和我的祖父一起确定了时

间、地点及小组7个成员的名字。我现在说不出有多兴奋了！ 

我的手在颤抖！ 我把几星期前他90岁生日的两张照片附上。

我不知道你是否能收到这个电子邮件，是否还记得他的长相。

如果你还在寻找他的话请告诉我。我期盼着你的回音”。 

Mary立即用电子邮件给予了回复：“是日本人把我们Taylor家

的5个人囚禁在了潍县集中营。”接着，她讲述了自己18年来一

直在寻找王成汉的经历。 

在与王谦的邮件交往中，Mary的思绪又回到了中国，又回到了

那个让她刻骨铭心的潍县集中营。轰鸣声，从集中营上空传来 

时间回到1945年8月17日，山东潍县(今潍坊)。 

对于12岁的Mary来说，她的脑海中，总在梦想着从天而降把她

及家人从恶魔手中解救出来的超级英雄。 

Mary的父母都是传教士。她随父母一道在山东一带生活。日本

人占领胶东半岛后，她们兄弟姊妹4人与爷爷被关进了潍县集

中营。集中营中非人的生活，让她总是幻想，终有一天，她及

家人会被英雄解救出去。 

阴沉的天空中，一阵隐隐约约的声音传了出来。不一会，一架

B-24飞临集中营上空盘旋，而且飞得很低。“我们看到飞机侧

面的星形标记，知道那是美国的飞机。”今年5月15日，美国

《The RETROSPECT》(美国回顾周报)发表的《七十年后Mary

终于找到了解救她的人》描述了Mary当时的心情。 

当天，一个以“鸭子行动”为代号的解救小组从一架B-24轰炸机

Duffel bag used by Wang Cheng-Han in Weihsien. 
Note the letters  “U. S.” printed on the bag. 



对Eddie Wang的寻找是另一回事。他住在中国，未曾与小组的

其他成员有过联系。对此，Mary决定提出16个问题，以进行确

认Eddie Wang的真实性。 

Mary的问题都是实实在在的。王先生仍能说英语吗？如果不

会，那又怎么在一起交流呢？ Mary说，自己的中文水平是很

有限的。 

5月3日上午9点（贵阳当天晚9点），Marry准时给王先生打电

话。Marry一家人挨坐在餐厅的桌边，电话通向了遥远的中

国。 

王成汉在贵阳和Mary通话，Mary的感觉就如同是大家坐在一

起聊天似的。一个90岁的人，身体健康，具有超凡的记忆力，

而且他仍然有使人惊异的英语能力，这一切，都让Mary感到惊

奇。 

Mary的16个问题得到了很好的回答。她确定这就是她要找的

Eddie Wang。 

当王成汉和王谦了解到，一个当年在集中营的12岁小姑娘一直

在寻找救援小组成员时，都非常惊奇。王谦说，“这事肯定对

她的一生十分重要。我只知道我祖父在第二次世界大战中参

军，但直到我和Mary联系并在她问到许多问题之前，我并不知

道有关祖父的一些细节”。今年8月，潍坊重逢 

今年8月，山东潍坊将举行“潍县集中营解放70周年纪念会”。

Mary被邀请为一本关于潍县集中营的书写序言。这本书将在中

国出版和发行。对于许多至今健在却不能去参加这次纪念会的

外侨，这本书和网站将有助于他们之间的联系和交流。 

90高龄的王成汉也被邀请参与这一盛会。记者了解到，身体硬

朗的王老参会应该不成问题，但毕竟是90岁的年龄了，出行的

安全问题怎样解决？远在重洋的Mary能否前来参会？她的身体

还允许她漂洋过海吗？ 

这一切，都成为了大家关注两人能否再次重逢的问题。 
 

最后一个英雄 

5月26日上午9时半，几经辗转，记者来到了位于贵阳的王成汉

老人家中。楼下，王成汉的儿子王家扬早已等候在此。 

上楼的过程中，记者问王家扬，王成汉老人现在正在家中干什

么？“上网。”简短的回答，让记者吃惊不小。印象中，90岁的

年龄，不说老态龙钟，也应该是少动多坐了。上网这种年轻人

干的事情，好像与90岁的老人相去甚远。带着一份惊奇，同时

还带着一丝疑虑，记者走进了这个充满了传奇的老人家中，听

他讲述那一段难忘的历程。 
 

投笔从戎 

一进门，一个身材并不魁伟的老人就出现在眼前。精神矍铄这

个词用在他的身上，应该没有一点奇异。 

王成汉今年已经90岁了，但身体非常健康，耳聪目明，说话也

利索，这让这次的采访进行得很顺利。听他说着当年的故事，

记者很诧异他竟然还记得如此多的细节，看来那段经历的确让

他难以忘怀。 

老人出生于武汉汉口，1965年来到贵阳冶金设计院工作直至退

休。 

1943年，18岁的王成汉考进了四川大学物理系。第二年的秋

天，大二的王成汉在学校听了冯玉祥的演讲后，毅然决定辍学

到庐州参加国民革命军青年军。当时四川大学去了20几个人，

加上其他大学的共有100多人，这批大学生们组成了203师搜索

连。王成汉在这里待了半个月，每天机械的重复下操的内容，

这让他很失望：“我到这里来是想打鬼子的，天天下操干啥

上空降到潍县集中营来解救被关押的外侨。 

“从飞机上空降了6名美国人和一名中国翻译，他们一个个地跳

离飞机，随即张开了降落伞。他们每个人都意识到，与死硬的

日本人之间并未达到可以协商交流的境地，他们可能在空降中

被日本人射杀。当他们落地后，集中营的外侨们就冲出大门去

迎接他们了”。Mary描述道，“我们想问许多问题，我们想和他

们直接谈话。他们身体都很健壮。” 

她说：“这些人冒着生命危险来解救我们。对于他们来说，我

们都是陌生人，但他们却来使我们获得自由。”她是强忍着泪

水这样说的。“集中营的孩子们带着羡慕的心情跟随在他们周

围。他们带来了口香糖、糖果和其它物品，这些是我们多年都

未见到过的。他们教孩子们唱歌，比如‘你是我的阳光’。在等

待物资到来和安排1500多外侨如何返回家乡的日子里，他们还

和孩子们玩垒球。孩子们想知道这些飞行的英雄们的一切，把

他们看作是神”。 

在Mary和其家人被解救时，她的父母还正在中国工作着。

Mary兄弟姊妹四人乘飞机离开潍县后，就去和他们的父母及一

个新出生不久的小弟团聚了。 

离开时的兴奋，使Mary都未能对解救她的英雄们表示一声感

谢。而这，也成为了她在52年后开始漫长的找寻英雄之路的成

因。18年，漫漫寻找路 

1997年，Mary已经成为了南新泽西州的女议员。 

在美国Mt. Laurel举办过一次中、缅、印退伍军人公告会。

Mary代替她的同事参加了这个公告会。会上，Mary开始询问

参加过二战的老兵，是否有人知道她幼时将她从集中营解救出

来的几位英雄，她列举出他们的名字：Stanley Staiger少校、

Jimmy Moore、Jim Hannon、Tad Nagaki中士、PeterOrlichk下

士、Ramond Hanchulak和中国翻译Eddie Wang（即王成汉）。 

Mary说：“这个问题引起大家风暴般的兴趣。其中有一位情报

官说他能够提供与六位美国人名字相同的、居住在美国的任何

人的电话号码和住址”。 

得到这样一份名单后，Mary对名字和电话号码进行了仔细的查

找，她成功地找到了其中健在的4人，对他们逐一表示了感

谢，对另两位的遗孀，Mary也找到了她们的住址，并表达了感

谢之情。 

一位老兵的遗孀保存有一块当时跳伞时所用降落伞的碎片，上

面绣有B-24轰炸机和每个空降人员的姓名。这一物件现存于美

国博物馆中。这块降落伞碎片上有着小组中的中国翻译Eddie 

Wang的名字。 

“在一个拥有十几亿人口的国家寻找Eddie Wang是几乎不可能

的事，”Mary说，“直到2015年3月29日，我从王谦的电子邮件

中得到消息，这个人就是Eddie Wang的孙子。” 

王谦在南卡罗来纳州和他的妻子在一起。他正急于完成他对祖

父王成汉的承诺，为他寻找在第二次世界大战中他那六个同志

的住址。Daniel在潍县社区网站上寻找到Mary Previte的名字，

知道她经常查询有关Eddie Wang的消息。于是，王谦给Mary发

了那封电子邮件。 

Mary说：“当我看到这条消息，知道王谦就住在南卡时，实在

是惊奇万分”。Mary必须确定这就是她要寻找的Eddie 

Wang。“我提出了许多问题，Daniel通过他的祖父确认。他的

祖父现住在中国贵州省，现年90岁，真是太不可思议了”。16

个问题，确认英雄身份 

由于Mary成功地寻找到了其他小组成员的下落，并和他们成为

了好朋友，他们彼此之间也常接触。Marry每找到一个人就会

通电话或去拜访，并促使当地的报纸宣扬他们的事迹。 



高，挺乖的，披着头发的美国小女孩。由于一个20岁，一个12

岁，他俩的年龄最接近，理所当然地就成为了好朋友。当时他

们一起玩垒球，一起去教堂做礼拜。不懂宗教的Eddie还在教

堂里抽上了烟，吓得Mary赶忙提醒这样是不行的。 
 

最后一个英雄 

联系上了王成汉之后，Mary的女儿开心的说：“太棒了！ 最后

一个英雄”。 

1997年，Mary开始尝试寻找当年鸭子行动组的7位成员，其他6

位美国人或其遗孀很快被找到，之后都保持着联系，唯独王成

汉一直没有找到。Mary在接受美国回顾周报采访时笑称，要在

中国找一个姓王的人，就好比在美国找一个叫史密斯的，根本

无法寻找。 

收到王谦的邮件后，Mary还列举了一系列的问题给王成汉以确

定他真的是当年那个Eddie。王成汉笑着说：“她问我当时在集

中营内做些什么呀?怎么出去呀？ 以及一些当时的细节，我就

一一回答了。后来还通了一个多小时的电话，当时真的很激

动，没想到时隔70年还能联系到当年的小女孩。” 
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子，又不教打仗的事情，我不干了。” 

这时，正好遇到电信大队搞了个培训班，到部队上抽调学员学

习拍电报的事情。虽说学完还是要返回连队的，但是王成汉心

想，管他的，先去学门技术也好就报名参加了。在电信大队学

了20几天，还是觉得没意思。这时候，战时紧张，对翻译的需

求也加大，国民党外事局便办了个译员培训班，电信班里好多

人都去报名。最初，王成汉知道不少人都是教会学校毕业的，

英文很好，自己只是一个高中英文，不敢去考。但是看到其他

人都考上了，就也准备试一试。王成汉回忆说，当时考的是口

试，也就是问一些在哪学习呀？ 为什么学英文之类的，自己

回答得应该不错，因为教官说话太快，他还让考官“take it ea-

sy”。 

考上是自然的，译员训练班急需要人。但电信班也一样，所以

不肯放人，说是如果去了就给他抓回去。王成汉便和译员训练

班招聘的人商量，换了一个名字--王作英，在那里还得了英文

名字：Edward 

Wang。 

1945年的4月25日，王成汉从译员训练班毕业，5月便到了昆明

的译员人才库。这批毕业生要在这里等着，哪个单位要人，就

来这里抽调。后来OSS（美国战略服务办公室）来这里招募，

王成汉便被选走了。OSS里面有四个行动组，王成汉最开始被

分到SO（特别行动组）。在这里，王成汉和同组的6人被派到

湖南芷江的前敌指挥所。准备去衡山跟中国抗日游击队取得联

系，在敌人后方袭击敌人。结果去了没多久，日本人占领了衡

山，游击打不成了。回去后又到云南开元受训，在那学习了跳

伞，小武器等。学跳伞是在地面模拟学习的，从未真正的跳

过。王成汉说，当时觉得有点不靠谱，就跟教官请示能否真正

的学跳一下，结果教官回答他：“没事的，你个子这么小，又

不是个大块头，没问题的。”但这样随意的态度让王成汉心里

很害怕，真要跳下来估计很危险哦。在这个时候王成汉一定想

不到，没多久他就真的要跳伞了。开元的训练结束后，王成汉

回到了昆明。在这期间，日本天皇宣布投降，便不再有游击任

务，王成汉被重新分配到了SI（特别情报组）。 
 

营救任务 

1945年8月15日，日本天皇宣布投降。但是，还有不少日本军

队是不服输的，很有可能对集中营内的侨民们实施报复。 

8月16日，行动组就被派到西安，当时还不知道要做什么。17

日一早到了机场，队长才宣布了从美国驻中国总司令魏德曼那

里收到的信件，要他们去潍县搭救集中营内的侨民。王成汉

说，当时日本在中国有好几个集中营，都派了SI成员去搭救。

每个组都以鸟类名称为代号，王成汉这只队就叫“鸭子行动

组”，早上9点半就飞到了潍县。 

王成汉笑着说，当时他是第五个跳伞下去的，因为从来没有真

正跳过伞，其实非常害怕，也不敢跳。是后面的一个人推了他

一把，他才跳下去了。一下去就感到一股力往下坠，他几乎晕

了过去，幸好他们的降落伞是自动打开的，他才活了下来。他

们当时降落在集中营外不远的高粱地里，营内的侨民们见到他

们落地后都从营内跑出来迎接，他们是被扛着进去的。他说不

少侨民出来时还带着刀子，就怕万一日本人不服气，会引发暴

乱，好在日本人睁一只眼闭一只眼，没去挑事。 

鸭子行动组在潍县集中营里待了一个多月，中途也有一些人员

和物资的补给，生活过得倒不错。 

说到Mary，他说，Mary大概是唯一一个记得他的名字叫Eddie

的，这让他很感动。而他也记得当年那个只有12岁，个子不



  


